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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Cartter Building is a two story native stone structure located on Broadway
just south of the Friend street intersection. It is one block north of the court-
house square and in the center of the community's business district. The building
- faces east and measures 22 feet on the front and 110 feet from east to west. It was

constructed to harmonize with the stone bank building to the north that had been
built six years earlier. :

The main facade, which faces east, has been constructed of cut stone. Originally
the building had an open arcade at the ground floor level with a setback store front.
The three stone columns which supported the cantilever above have been removed, probably
around 1911 or 1912. The space is now filled in with a flush glass facade. There
are four tightly spaced segmental arched windows across the second story. Their
frames, which are patterned after those on the building to the north, have a dressed
stone band that outlines the window. There is a molding at the springing line and a
keystone which accents the arch. The sill is supported by stone brackets which align
with the frame. The building is crowned with a metal cornice which breaks into a
pediment over the center two windows. The name of the owner and the construction date
have been embossed in the typanum of this pediment. Although. the cornice is not
identical to that of the bank, it is very similar. B e

The other facades have been constructed of coursed rubble. A Tlater one story
stone shed added 20 feet to the rear of the building. :

The interior has been extensively remodeled and none of the original bui]ding
fabric is visible. :

The Cartter Building is interestihg not only because it displays the high Tlevel
of the Tocal craftsmanship but also because of the owner's desire to harmonize his
building with its earlier existing neighbor.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Together ‘with the adjacent Chase County National Bank, the Cartter Building is
a key element in downtown Cottonwood Falls and complements the Chase County Courthouse
(already on the National Register) located on the square one block south. The Cartter
Building, which disp]ays the quality of the local craftsmen in working the native stone,
enriches its environment  and forms an important historical 1ink to the past.. With
the adjoining bank building, which is of similar construction and style, it helps to
anchor the major intersection of the town's business district.

The Cartter Building was erected in 1888 for Dr. William H. Cartter, a prominent
ranchers stockman, and investor at Cottonwood Falls. Dr. Cartter, together with his
" father, Judge D.K. Cartter of Washington, D.C., acquired large holdings of Chase county
grazing ‘and farm land in the mid-1870's. Dr. Cartter was a trained surgeon but'rare1y~
pract1ced after moving to Chase county. He was widely known for his interest in stock
=raising and race horses, and he. a]so had a var1ety of investments in local commercial
act1v1t1es : :

5 In late November, 1887, he purchased a bu11d1ng site on Broadway, the town's main
}commerc1a1 street, for $750 per frontage foot. He contracted with David Rettiger for

- the construction of a two story stone building, the front of which was to correspond
with that of the adjacent bank building. The estimated cost was $10,000. By the first
of December excavation work had begun and the following week Rettiger and his men were
laying stone. Once on December and again in early February, Rettiger's stone-cutters
went on strike because he refused to fire a non-union worker who evidently had not
completed his apprent1cesh1p but was working at journeyman's wages.

The building was intended to house Smith and Cartter's grocery store. Dr. Cartter
was for a time involved in a partnership with William S. Smith. The daily operation
of the business was evidently left to a hired manager.

On Apti1 5 it was announced that the Masons and the Odd Fellows would rent the
~second floor hall of the new Cartter Building for a lodge room. Before the grocery
- store was moved in, a grand opening celebration was staged in the new building by
“Dr. Cartter's. o]dest son, David K. Cartter. Some 300 -invitations were sent out and
about 500 people came for the festivities, from Topeka, Emporia and Kansas City as well
as from throughout Chase county. The first f]oor was fitted up as a reception room
and the second floor, which featured an eight p1ece band on a suspended platform in
‘the middle of the room, was given over to dancing. ' A 11 o'clock supper was served in
‘the nearby Central Hote] The evening was pronounced a great success and a]together the
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"b1ggest event of its type the county had ever seen

Smith and Cartter S qrocery opened for bus1ness in the new 1ocat1on the
first week of June. From contemporary newspaper accounts it appears that
David K. Cartter and Sherry "Chick" Smith, sons of the two pr1nc1pa1s, were
taking an active role in the operation of the business. The building: was

| transferred from Dr. Cartter's ownership to his son Dav1d on August 23, 1888.
The younger Cartter so]d 1t June 1, 1892. LR ,

Through the years the structure has ‘housed a number of commerc1a1

: ,act1v1t1es and has been altered on the first floor front. In 1968 it was

purchased by the local school board for district offices. Together with the
ne1ghbor1ng Chase'County National Bank, both of which were ‘built by David

|Rettiger in a similar style, it presents an architectural link to the 19th

century deve]opment of the Cottonwood Falls commerc1a1 district.
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